M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 28, 2001
9: 09 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 55, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:09 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donal d O son

Al so Attending: JANET PARKER, Deputy Director, D vision of
Retirement and Benefits, Departnent of Administration; MATT
ANDERSQON, Unit Manager, EMS, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services; BILL ROLFZEN, Division of Community and Business
Devel opnent, Departnent of Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchor age: CLYDE SN FFEN,
Departnent of Law

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

SB 37 - PHYSI Cl AN NEGOTI ATI ONS W TH HEALTH | NSURE

The Conmittee heard fromthe Departnment of Law and the Depart nent
of Adm nistration and the bill was HELD in Conm ttee.

SB 143 - RI GHT- OF- WAY LEASI NG ACT: APPLI CATI ON COST
After a brief discussion the bill was reported from Conm ttee.

SB 104 - AID TO VOLUNTEER SERVI CES

SFC- 01 (1) 03/ 28/ 01



After a brief discussion the bill was HELD in Committee.

#sb37

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 37(L&C)

"An Act relating to collective negotiation by physicians wth
health benefit plans, to health benefit plan contracts wth
i ndi vi dual conpeting physicians, to the application of state
antitrust laws to agreenments involving providers and groups of
providers affected by collective negotiations, and to the effect of
the collective negotiation provisions on health care providers.”

Co-Chair Kelly explained that essentially SB 37 would create, in
| aw, a structure by which physicians could negotiate with insurance
conpanies collectively without violating anti-trust laws if they
had the oversight of a state agency. He noted that the state
action doctrine would create the oversight of the negotiations by a
state agency; in this case they chose the Departnent of Law. He
referred to a suprene court case back in 1943, which accepted the
fact that the anti-trust provisions would not work in every
situation. He suggested that it would be a situation where it was
not appropriate to apply strict anti-trust provisions and where
there was a need for state oversight. He concluded that what they
were creating was the ability for physicians to cone together and
negotiate with insurance conpanies on a voluntary basis.

KRIS KNAUSS, staff to Senator Pete Kelly, explained that within
geographical service if there were nore than 40 physicians in an
area then only 30 percent of themcould negotiate and if there was
| ess than 40 then 100 percent could negotiate, which neans that in
the nore urban areas, such as Anchorage, only 30 percent of the
mar ket woul d be negotiating with insurance conpani es. He pointed
out that in the latest version of SB 37 they excluded the self
insured fromthe bill and changed sone of the |anguage in the bill
with regards to a physician negotiating only with an insurance
agency and those negotiations becom ng confidential rather than
having a public process or hearing. He indicated that there was
not a conpetitive group of large insurance conpanies in the state
and what they were trying to do was open the door for the snmaller
i nsurance conpani es to negotiate with physicians.

Co-Chair Kelly explained that one of the problens was in the past
few years the nunber of insurance conpanies went from18 to six and
as they continued to buy each other up they gained nore and nore
mar ket power . He noted that with the physicians they have had
not hing of the like happen to them and they al so have the anti-

SFC- 01 (2) 03/ 28/ 01



trust laws working against them therefore, if they were to get
together with a colleague to discuss sonething with regards to
negoti ations with insurance conpani es the Federal Trade Conm ssion
(FTC) could shut them down and fine them He stated that SB 37
woul d all ow the physicians to cone together on a voluntary basis
and negotiate with the insurance conpanies and they would not be
threatened with | egal action because of it.

Senator O son wondered why the self-insured were excluded if it
meant sol o-practitioners were bei ng excl uded.

Co-Chair Kelly replied that the solo-practitioner would not be able
to take advantage of the bill; they would be excluded from the
provi sions of the bill

Senator O son wondered if the definition of self-insured neant
covering mal practice.

Co-Chair Kelly <clarified that it was not the self-insured
physi cian, but rather, for exanple, the State of Al aska and the
teansters woul d be considered sel f-insured.

Senator Green further clarified that self-insured had to do with
groups of people that had chosen to be self-insured, rather than
have a third-party deal with the insurance conpani es.

CLYDE SNI FFEN, Departnment of Law, testified via tel econference from
Anchor age, expressed that they continued to have concerns with the
bill.

JANET PARKER, Deputy Director, D vision of Retirenent and Benefits,
Department of Administration, indicated that she was there to
answer any questions regarding the fiscal note.

Senator WI ken wondered if she was speaking to the fiscal note
dated March 15.

Ms. Parker yes.

Senator W/l ken pointed out that it would seem that SB 37, by
i ncreased conpetition, would drive costs down, but according to the
fiscal note the cost is being driven up by alnost $9 mllion in the
state plan. He said that he was in favor of the bill, because it
appeared to drive down costs.

Ms. Parker explained that what they were doing was giving providers

the opportunity to ban together and negotiate. She noted that they
were not going to try and negotiate their rei nmbursenment down, but

SFC- 01 (3) 03/ 28/ 01



rat her negotiate it up.

Co-Chair Kelly indicated that throughout the course of SB 37 they
heard many people testify that it would drive costs up. He pointed
out that the negotiations were conpletely voluntary and if the
i nsurance conpani es do not want to negotiate than they do not have

to. He also pointed out that the provisions of the bill stated
that the physicians could not act in a retaliatory manner and they
could not boycott. He stressed that all SB 37 was doing was

al l owi ng physicians to act in such a manner that they could at
| east cone to a group to decide whether they wanted to negotiate in
the first place and then the insurance conpani es have the option of
saying “no.” He does not see how there could be an increase of 5
to 13 percent in healthcare costs.

Ms. Parker replied that there really was no way of know ng, because
it had not occurred yet. She explained that they have just done
sonme studi es based on federal l|legislation that were simlar.

Co-Chair Kelly clarified, "There were sone studies on that and
there were also studies that said the nethodol ogy on the study that
you're referring to was conpletely out of wack and it sounds to ne
- and Ms. Parker | certainly don’t nean to criticize what you’ ve
sai d, because | know these aren’t the nunbers that you’ ve conme up
Wi th necessarily, | mean |I’mnot hol ding you accountable for these
exact nunbers in here, but they are the nunbers that 1’ve been
hearing froma nunber of organi zations and testifiers and | think
it’s a nunber that’s just flat been pulled out of the air.”

Ms. Parker said, “I plead the fifth.”

Co-Chair Kelly commented that it brought up a good point, that
bei ng, how could sonething that is conpletely voluntary drive up
costs. He did not think that it would drive up costs. He
reiterated that all SB 37 did was provide sonme oversight to all ow
physi cians to cone together so that they would have sonme market
power to deal w th insurance conpanies that were getting | arger and
nore powerful; therefore, there would be sonme kind of equality and
equity in the bargaining position. He stressed that SB 37 was not
a “sky is falling” bill as had been presented.

Co-Chair Kelly reported that the bill would be HELD in Comm ttee.

AT EASE 9:27 AM 9:30 AM

#sb143

SFC- 01 (4) 03/ 28/ 01



SENATE BI LL NO. 143

"An Act authorizing the Departnent of Natural Resources to enter
into agreenents with a person or persons desiring to owm an oil or
nat ural gas pipeline proposed to be |located on state |and for the
pur poses of providing for paynent of the reasonable costs incurred
in preparing for activities before receipt of an application under
the Al aska Right-of- Way Leasing Act and for activities relating to
t he processing of an application under that Act; and providing for
an effective date."

Senat or John Torgerson, sponsor of SB 143, indicated that SB 143
woul d allow them specifically for gas lines, to collect the costs
that were determ ned to be reinbursable on pre-applications or on
the work that occurred before the application was submtted. He
noted that the Senate Finance Conmttee struggled wth the
suppl enent al budget where there was a $4 nmillion request and $10
mllion for application costs next year. He pointed out that SB
143 woul d allow the departnents to start a menorandum process with
applicants and start the reinbursenent process i medi ately.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if Senator Torgerson was sunseting the
bill.

Senator Torgerson replied that there was a sunset clause in the
bill for 2003. He explained that the thought process behind that
was that there would be an application by the end of this year or
t he begi nning of next year and once the application was in they
woul d go onto existing law. He said that they decided to sunset
the bill so the adm nistration would not be able to nake deals all
the tine, but if there were not applications in and there was stil
work to be done they woul d extend the sunset date for a couple nore
years. He added that it would be an easy fix.

Co-Chair Kelly indicated that during the capital budget overview
they did come across the request for $10 nmillion and wondered if
t hat was adequately covered.

Senat or Torgerson responded that he did |ook through the $10
mllion request and indicated that there were sone expenses that
woul d be determned to not be reinbursable. He said that he did
not agree with the fiscal note, because they were basically saying
that only $4 million of the $10 mllion would be rei nbursabl e and
he felt that it would be higher.

Senat or Green wondered if the departnent could arbitrarily charge

soneone who they thought was going to apply. She asked if there
was any saf eguard agai nst an over-zeal ous inpl enentation

SFC- 01 (5) 03/ 28/ 01



Co-Chair Kelly pointed out that there were other statutes that
det erm ne what woul d be considered a reasonabl e cost.

Senat or Torgerson agreed that nost of it would be covered under an

agreenent . He noted that they currently have regulations and
statutes that cover reinbursable expenditures. He said that the
$3.9 nmillion discussed in the fiscal note would be reinbursable

upon receiving an application.

Senator Green requested clarification that the applicant would
trigger the process.

Senat or Torgerson replied yes.

Co-Chair Kelly requested clarification that the applicant woul d be
payi ng fees before actually receiving the permt, whereas, in the
past those fees would be paid after they received the permt.

Senator Torgerson replied, “That’s correct.” He explained that the
ones that were reinbursable could be backed up in the begi nning and
they woul d be reinbursed sonetine in the future. He clarified that
SB 143 would inplenment it now instead of waiting for a

rei mbur senent . He referred to Senator Geen’s question and
indicated that SB 143 stated that there could not be any charges
until an actual agreenment was signed; therefore, they could not

just send a bill

Co-Chair Donley noved SB 143, 22-LS0667\J, from Conmttee wth
acconpanyi ng fiscal note and individual recomendations.

There was no objection and SB 143 was reported from Conmittee.

#sb104

SENATE BI LL NO. 104

"An Act relating to state aid for volunteer services; and providing
for an effective date.”

Senat or Torgerson, sponsor of SB 104, indicated that SB 104 sinply
woul d pay volunteer fire departnments and EMS services $10 per
capita for the areas that they served. He noted that it was a big
i ssue for areas such as Cooper Landing. He said that SB 104 was an
attenpt to try to get the fire departnent a little bit of noney and
hel p offset their operating expenses.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if it was a redistribution of noney.

SFC- 01 (6) 03/ 28/ 01



Senat or Torgerson believed it was new noney.

Co-Chair Kelly requested clarification that the $863, 000 was all
new noney.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that they were general fund doll ars.
Co-Chair Kelly agreed.

Senat or Torgerson agreed.

Senator W1l ken wondered if there were any volunteer fire
departnments or energency nedical services (EMS) that served areas
W th popul ations greater than 2, 500.

Senat or O son answered yes.

Senator Geen indicated that Chugiak and Eagle River both have
vol unteer fire departnents.

Co- Chair Donl ey agreed.

Co- Chair Donl ey wondered what the thought was behind the 2,500
popul ation limt.

Senator Torgerson replied that it was in current |aw.

Co-Chair Donley believed that the current |aw addressed whet her
t hey were unorgani zed or organi zed.

Senat or Torgerson explained that the 2,500 opened it up for
unor gani zed or organi zed.

MATT ANDERSQN, Unit Manager, EMS, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces, indicated that over the past decade or so the amount of
financial resources available to small rural services had declined
dramatically. He pointed out that in 2001 they were seeing sone
dynam cs, which included, an increase in the cost of operation, the
run vol une had increased and nmuch of the capital equi pnent that the

servi ces have owned were nearing the end of their useful lives. He
added that there were some changes in comunication technol ogy and
the standards of care have increased the cost as well. He

concluded that they were supportive of efforts to increase the
anmount of financial resources available to rural energency nedica
servi ces. He said that they believed that this kind of system
woul d be an excellent adjunct to the well-devel oped EMS regional
system that they have today. He added that there were a nunber of

SFC- 01 (7) 03/ 28/ 01



services that they certify as EMS that operate in conmmunities
greater than 2,500. For exanple, he listed Anchorage, Kenai,
Sitka, Ketchikan.

Senator WIken wondered if he picked a community |ike Esther
volunteer fire departnment if there would be a tab that showed to
what extent the |ocal borough or the | ocal people supported each of
the volunteer fire departnents.

M. Anderson replied that they did not have that Kkind of
i nformation.

Senat or WI ken wondered who woul d know.

M. Anderson answered that the Departnment of Community and Econom c
Devel opnent woul d possi bly know.

BILL ROLFZEN, Division of Comunity and Business Devel opnent,
Departnment of Conmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent, regarded Senat or
Wl ken s question and indicated that the information would be
avai l abl e through the borough’s budget and year-end financi al
audi t .

Senator WIlken wondered if they tracked the anmount of |ocal
participation that was matched wth the state funding in
unor gani zed Al aska to support their fire departnent.

M. Rolfzen indicated that currently under the state revenue
programthe only accounting as far as volunteer fire departnents in
t he unorgani zed boroughs were reported in the revenue sharing fund.

Senator WI| ken wondered if M. Rolfzen was aware of sone | ocal
participation in all volunteer fire departnents.

M. Rolfzen responded all of themcontributed | ocal noney, whether
it was through bake sales or raffles.

Senator W/ ken wondered if the existing programonly served 21 fire
departnents in the state.

M. Rolfzen responded that was how many were funded in FYO1.

Co-Chair Kelly reported that the bill would be HELD in Commi ttee.
#

ADJ QURNVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 09:48 AM

SFC- 01 (8) 03/ 28/ 01



